
2007-0800 Solar Energy Policies Ordinance  Approved Minutes 
  September 8, 2008 
  Page 1 of 4 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 8, 2008 
 
2007-0800 - City of Sunnyvale [Applicant]: Make amendments to Sunnyvale 
Municipal Code Title 9 (Public Peace, Safety or Welfare) and various sections in 
Title 19 (Zoning) to implement the new solar energy policies adopted by the City 
Council on December 11, 2007.  DO (Continued from August 25, 2008) 
 
Diana O'Dell, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. She said staff is 
recommending that the Planning Commission recommend City Council make the 
changes in Attachment B, to remove the nuisance language and revert to state 
law on the issues of conflict between trees and solar shading. 
 
Comm. Klein referred to the Attachment B, page 5 and said he had a question 
regarding the wording. He discussed with staff the incentive to reduce the 
parking lot shading requirement with the installation of solar energy systems 
rather than trees. He said that he recalls the requirement was to include some 
sort of structure for the solar systems that would be covering the parking lot and 
providing some shading and the wording does not seem to address the structure. 
Ms. O’Dell referred to page 5 and further discussed the shading and the 
calculations of roofed area supporting the solar energy system. Trudi Ryan, 
Planning Officer, added that if the entire item is read that the shading issue is 
more clear. Comm. Klein said he thinks a slight clarification to the language is 
still needed, to include that the structure the solar energy system is located on 
would also provide covering to the parking lot. Ms. Ryan noted that staff did not 
specifically state photovoltaic systems as there might be other types of systems 
used. Ms. O’Dell said that since the report was distributed that staff received a 
comment requesting clarification to the language regarding Owner’s 
Associations.  Ms. O’Dell referred to Attachment B, page 6, 19.56.050 and said 
staff is requesting that the following modification be made: “That a letter from the 
Owner’s Association approving the application shall be submitted for installation 
of solar energy systems in common areas where the Owner’s Association is 
responsible for maintenance and repairs”.  
 
Comm. McKenna, also referring to Attachment B, page 5, said she had the 
same concern as Comm. Klein when she read this section and agrees with him 
that additional language should be included clarifying that the structure with the 
solar energy system on it would also provide covering to the parking lot area. 
 
Comm. Hungerford referred to Attachment B, page 6, regarding incentives and 
asked about the requirement that the system installation must be a minimum 
solar energy system size to receive the incentive. He said he recalls a discussion 
regarding the need to maintain and operate the solar energy system for a period 



2007-0800 Solar Energy Policies Ordinance  Approved Minutes 
  September 8, 2008 
  Page 2 of 4 
 
of time so someone would not install a system to get the incentive and then not 
maintain it. He said he does not see any reference to this issue. Ms. Ryan said 
staff thinks the solar energy systems are substantial investments and that it is 
unlikely that a system would be installed just for the incentive as the amount of 
financial investment would encourage someone to actually use the system to 
gain the benefit.  
 
Comm. McKenna referred to page 2 of the report, regarding possible deviations 
from certain requirements, i.e. FAR (Floor Area Ratio), lot coverage, and 
setbacks, for solar energy system installation. She asked if City Council had 
addressed considering the deviations as incentives. Ms. Ryan said, no, and that 
staff is only raising the issue to the Commission now, though staff is not 
recommending the deviations be used as incentives. Comm. McKenna said she 
would like to see this discussion of considering the deviations forwarded to the 
Council. Comm. McKenna said applicants come to the Planning Commission 
requesting higher FARs and it would be nice to have some consideration given 
to possibly providing incentives to those who would like to increase the FAR and 
install solar energy systems. 
 
Chair Rowe referred to page 2 of the report and asked about the allowance for 
solar collectors in lieu of parking lot shading. Ms. Ryan explained the action that 
was taken by Council was to allow up to 25% of the required shading to be 
satisfied with a solar facility and would be at the expense of some trees.  Chair 
Rowe referred to page 3 asking staff to clarify the meaning of “vegetation which 
has been deemed by the City Council to have cultural, horticultural or heritage 
significance”. Staff explained that some trees are designated as heritage 
resources, heritage landmarks, or trees needed to be preserved because they 
are over a certain size. Chair Rowe referred to Attachment A, page 5 where 
Councilmember Howe discusses HOA (Homeowner Association) options and 
said she does not get the sense from the ordinance that the Friendly Amendment 
was addressed in the code.  Chair Rowe discussed this issue with staff with staff 
explaining that the Friendly Amendment addresses that single-family 
homeowners can make their own decision about placement of solar systems and 
the HOAs should have some say at the placement of solar systems if the area 
proposed is a common area maintained by the HOA. Chair Rowe referred to 
Attachment C, page 2, Section 1, 25981 (b) regarding the installation of solar 
collectors on the ground and asked if this was addressed or is the City only 
involved with solar collectors on roofs. Kathryn Berry, Senior Assistant City 
Attorney, said that Attachment C is state law and said this section is defining 
solar collectors for the purposes of defining what a private nuisance is. Ms. Berry 
said that the Sunnyvale Code had defined solar collectors differently. She further 



2007-0800 Solar Energy Policies Ordinance  Approved Minutes 
  September 8, 2008 
  Page 3 of 4 
 
discussed the state law and how it interacts with the Sunnyvale Municipal Code 
in regards to solar.  Ms. Ryan said there are two different provisions in the state 
law, with one being defined with solar collectors on roofs and one being defined 
with solar collectors needing to be located on the ground, due to various 
reasons.  Ms. Ryan said the Sunnyvale ordinance does not differentiate whether 
the collectors are on the roof or on the ground.   
 
Chair Rowe opened the public hearing.  
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Chair Rowe closed the public hearing.  
 
Comm. Klein moved for Alternative 1, to repeal SMC 19.56.030 and adopt 
the ordinance language (Attachment B) as proposed by staff with the 
modified language added tonight.  He asked staff to recap the changes. Ms. 
O’Dell said the first is to clarify 19.38.070 that the dimensions of the roofed 
area shall be shading to the actual parking lot area.  She said the second 
change is to amend the language to 19.56.050 to include that a letter be 
required from the Owner’s Association approving the installation of solar 
energy systems when placed in commonly-held areas where the Owner’s 
Association is responsible for maintenance and repairs. Comm. Sulser 
seconded the motion. 
 
Comm. Klein said that this ordinance has been a long time coming and he is 
happy to see it almost completed.  He said solar energy has been changing at 
the state and national level. He complimented staff for trying to meet the ever 
changing rules. He said he is glad to see the items previously discussed included 
in the ordinance and he is happy to pass this recommendation on to City 
Council. 
 
Comm. Sulser said that he is thrilled that incentives for solar energy are being 
codified and he is excited about the clarification of ordinance language to comply 
with state law in terms of trees and solar installations. 
 
Comm. McKenna said that solar energy has been around Sunnyvale for a long 
time, and that this is a good first step towards the sustainability project. She said 
she is dismayed that it has taken situations like the oil crisis and global warming 
to get us to this point. She said she looks forward to seeing the whole 
sustainability package coming back to the Commission.   
 



2007-0800 Solar Energy Policies Ordinance  Approved Minutes 
  September 8, 2008 
  Page 4 of 4 
 
ACTION: Comm. Klein made a motion on 2007-0800 to recommend to City 
Council to adopt the ordinance language in Attachment B with 
modifications: to clarify in section 19.38.070 that the roof area counted 
towards parking lot shading requirements shall be located in the actual 
parking lot area; and to amend the language to 19.56.050 to clarify that a 
letter from the Owner’s Association is only required in instances where the 
solar energy systems are placed in commonly-held areas where the 
Owner’s Association is responsible for maintenance and repairs. Comm. 
Sulser seconded.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.  

 
APPEAL OPTIONS: This recommendation will be forwarded to City Council 
for consideration at the September 30, 2008 City Council meeting.  
 


